FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON 8/2/2024 BY ERIN L. LENNON CLERK DIVISION III STATE OF WASHINGCOSE #: 1033265 No. 390772

THE SUPREME COURT OF WASHINGTON

Court of Appeals No. 390772

Spokane Superior Court No. 1920412432

In Re:

MARGITAN, ALLAN, MARGITAN, GINA,

Defendant/ Counter-Claimants, Petitioners,

VS,

HANNA, MARK, HANNA, JENNIFER,

Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants, Respondents.

PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONERS

The Petitioners are Allan and Gina Margitan.

II. DECISIONS BELOW

Petitioners seek review of the Opinion entered May 30,

2024, (attached as Appendix "A") and the Order denying

Motion for Reconsideration and Motion to Publish entered July

9, 2024. (attached as Appendix "B")

III. ISSUES FOR REVIEW

- A. Whether the Court of Appeals Opinion is in conflict with the decisions of this Court pursuant to RAP 13.4(b)(1),(2)&(3) governing the Washington State Constitution Article I Section 3 and and the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments of the United States Constitution.
- B. Whether the Court of Appeals Opinion is in conflict with the decisions of this Court pursuant to RAP 13.4(b)(1),(2),(3)&(4) governing a trial Court's authority to alter a Negotiated Settlement Agreement.
- **C.** Whether the Court of Appeals Opinion is in conflict with the decisions of this Court pursuant to RAP 13.4(b)(1),(2) governing a trial Court's authority over nonparties.

IV. Statement of the Case.

Petitioners (Margitans) believe it is important to provide this Court with history regarding the easement that serves Margitans' property.

The dedicated 40-foot easement was created during the creation of short plat 1227-00. Plaintiffs' (Hannas) parcel 2 is the servient estate for parcel 3 of short plat 1227-00. In 2010 Margitans purchased parcel 3 of short plat 1227-00. Margitans only access for egress, ingress and utilities is through the dedicated 40-foot short plat easement which travels through Hannas' parcel 2.

Hannas' misuse of Margitan's 40-foot-easement has resulted in years of litigation.

This dispute started in 2019 when Hannas geothermal system was damaged by Margitans when they were digging a trench within their easement so they could replace their leaking drinking waterline. Hannas never informed the Margitans that

Petion for Discretionary Review - Page 2 of 19

they had installed their geothermal piping within the Margitans' easement. Hannas knew Margitans had called 811 locate services and that 811 locate services do not locate geothermal piping.

On April 27, 2022, just days before trial, Margitans and Hannas entered an Agreed upon NSA. (CP. 1227 - 1228)

NSA issue - subject of this Petition for Review.

The signed NSA was incomplete because it still required further meeting of the minds to agree upon release language and protective terms regarding Margitan's personal/confidential information obtained by Hannas' counsel when secretively serving subpoenas during Margitans pending motion to quash the subpoenas.

On April 28, 2022, a brief outline of the NSA was presented to the trial Court. The signed NSA was not presented to the court or read into the record.

Petion for Discretionary Review - Page 3 of 19

Almost a month after signing the NSA, Hannas' counsel's declaration confirms that issues were in dispute: "As set forth in our reply brief, we believe we are close to finding release language that both parties agree to." CP 1318 ¶ 4 Close to finding release language confirms the NSA was not a final document. Hannas' counsel goes further proving issues were in dispute when he stated at CP 1319 line 25 - CP 1320 "...we sent to Mr. Lockwood with highlights of the significant language we had changed or that was still in dispute." Hannas' counsel's declaration confirms the April 2022 signed NSA was not complete: "Mr Rwoland (sic) was obviously unaware of the ongoing negotiations with Mr Lockwood." (CP. 1290 line 14) and his June 1, 2022 e-mail stated: "Let me know which one of you is negotiating the release and I'll send it on." (CP. 1299) last line)

Mr. Lockwood declared "...on May 6, 2022, I received a greatly modified settlement agreement from Paul Stewart." CP

Petion for Discretionary Review - Page 4 of 19

1224¶ 12 "The modified settlement agreement contained a number of objectionable provisions which were not agreed to" CP 1224 ¶ 13 "On June 1, 2022 we received a revised Settlement Agreement from Paine Hamblen which still contained objectionable provisions(to which there was no agreement)." CP 1225 ¶17

Hannas' purposed release contained new terms and issues that were not discussed during negotiations. CP 1225 ¶17 Hannas' even wanted Margitans to release Hannas' adult children which were nonparties to the litigation. Margitans refused to sign the release due to Hannas' new proposals. Hannas refused to withdraw the new terms and conditions to which they wanted Margitans to agree.

On June 21, 2022, Hannas moved forward to enforce the NSA. Hannas scheduled a Motion to Shorten Time and Motion to Enforce the NSA with only 3 days' notice.

Petion for Discretionary Review - Page 5 of 19

The trial court did not enforce the April 27, 2022 signed NSA as written. It altered it. The trial Court rewrote the NSA converting it into a one-sided court order.

The signed and agreed upon NSA stated:

- 1. PEMCO Mutual Insurance Company, on behalf of its insured Defendants/Counter Defendants Hanna, will pay a total sum of eighty-five thousand and no/hundreds (\$86,000.00) as follows:
 - a. Fifty thousand and no/100 dollars (\$50,000.00) to Margitans;
 - b. Thirty-five thousand and no/100 dollars (\$35,000.00) to the client trust account of Attorney Lockwood, said sum to held in trust until Hannas' geothermal heating system is replaced and Hannas' excavation contractor has excavated the waterline across lot 2;
- (CP. 1227 1228)

The trial court rewrote the terms ordering:

I.

Pemco, on behalf of its insured, the Hannas, will pay to the client trust account of Margitans' attorney J. Gregory Lockwood, a single lump sum of Eighty-Five thousand Dollars (\$85,000.00).

II.

From the above referenced payment, Thirty Thousand Dollars (\$30,000.00) shall be used for the purposes of

margienl@aol.com

Petion for Discretionary Review - Page 6 of 19 PO Box 328 Nine Mile Falls, WA 99026 509-990-6169 facilitating replacement by the Hannas of their existing geothermal heating/air conditioning system with a heat pump heating and air conditioning system. Up to Thirty Thousand Dollars (\$30,000.00) of said sum will be released to Hannas' contractor upon completion of the heating system replacement from trust upon their demonstration by invoice of the cost of purchasing and installation of said replacement system.

III.

Additionally, from the above-referenced payment, the sum of Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00) shall be used for the purposes of facilitating the excavation by Hanna's contractor of the waterline trench. Said sum will be released to Hannas' contractor from trust upon presentation by Hannas' contractor of an invoice demonstrating the cost incurred for the contractor to excavate the trench for the replacement waterline. (CP 1350 - 1351)

The trial court removed the negotiated language which required a trench to be dug across lot 2 and a heating system be installed before any funds would be released to Hannas.

The trial court's rewritten NSA was altered so Hannas could get paid for their heating system without digging Margitans waterline trench. <u>To present date, Hannas' contractor has not</u> <u>dug the trench across lot 2, yet Hannas have been paid for a</u>

Petion for Discretionary Review - Page 7 of 19

<u>new heating system</u>. Due to these court Ordered modifications, December 8, 2022, Hannas demanded payment for their new heating system and were paid the next day.

The trial Court granted both Hannas motions. July 5, 2022, Margitans filed a Motion for Reconsideration. (CP 1441-1468) On July 29, 2022, the new trial Judge would not hear Margitans' CR 59 Motion for Reconsideration on the grounds "...it would effectively be acting in an appellate capacity; the Court lacks such authority." citing to <u>Stacey V. Colvin</u>, 825 F.3d 563, 567 (9th Cir. 2016) (CP 1532-1533)

On May 30, 2024, the Court of Appeals Division III upheld the trial Court's ruling on both the Motion to Shorten Time and Motion to Enforce the NSA. On June 21, 2024, Margitans filed a Motion for Reconsideration and Publication. On July 9, 2024, the Court of Appeals denied Margitans Motion for Reconsideration and Publication requests. Margitans petition

Petion for Discretionary Review - Page 8 of 19

requests this Court review the constitutional errors of the lower courts.

V. ARGUMENT

A. The Court of Appeals Opinion is in conflict with the decisions of this court pursuant to RAP 13.4(b)(1),(2)&(3) because it deprived Margitans the protection of the Washington State Constitution Article I Section 3 and the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments of the United States Constitution. (Due Process)

Margitans were deprived of a hearing pursuant to Court Rule

59 (CR 59) and Local Rules of the Superior Court for Spokane

County 59. (LCR 59)

The Opinion conflicts with The United States Constitution that guarantees that federal and state governments will not deprive an individual of "life, liberty, or property, without due process of law." U.S. CONST. amends. V XIV, § 1. The due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment confers both procedural and substantive protections.

Petion for Discretionary Review - Page 9 of 19

The Opinion conflicts with US and Washington State cases which prohibit trial courts from failing to hear a litigant's motion.

The Opinion overlooks:

<u>Albright v. Oliver</u>, 510 U.S. 266, 114 S. Ct. 807, 127 L. Ed. 2d 114 (1994). Which states a court cannot deprive a litigant of an opportunity to be heard;

<u>Armstrong v. Manzo</u>, 380 U.S. 545, 552, 85 S. Ct. 1187, 14 L. Ed. 2d 62 (1965)) confirming a litigant must be given the <u>opportunity to be heard</u> must be "at a meaningful time and in a meaningful manner";

John Doe v. Puget Sound Blood Ctr., 117 Wn.2d 772, 780, 819 P.2d 370 (1991) "The court rules recognize and implement the right of access.";

<u>Carter v. University of Washington</u>, 85 Wn.2d 391, 399, 536 P.2d 618 (1975) the plurality opinion held that the right of equal access to the courts was a fundamental right;

Petion for Discretionary Review - Page 10 of 19

Fairwood Greens Homeowners v. Young, 26 Wn. App. 758, 614 P. 2d 219, 223 (1980) Division One confirmed "*The* essence of procedural due process is notice **and the right to be heard**. The notice must be reasonably calculated to apprise a party of the pendency of proceedings affecting him or his property, **and must afford an opportunity to present his objections** before a competent tribunal." (emphasis added);

<u>Conard v. University of Washington</u>, 62 Wash. App. 664, 814 P.2d 1242 (1991) the essential elements of procedural due process stating: "... right to a meaningful hearing. Clearly, at least notice and an opportunity to be heard are required.";

Boddie v. Connecticut, 401 U.S. 371 (1971) "...Persons forced to settle their claims of right and duty through the judicial process must be given a meaningful opportunity to be heard.';

Mullane v. Central Hanover Tr. Co., 339 U. S. 306 (1950)"There can be no doubt that, at a minimum, they require thatPetion for Discretionary Review - Page 11 of 19Allan Margitan Pro Se
PO Box 328

PO Box 328 Nine Mile Falls, WA 99026 509-990-6169 margienl@aol.com deprivation of life, liberty or property by adjudication be preceded by notice and opportunity for hearing appropriate to the nature of the case.";

<u>Cleveland Bd. of Educ. v. Loudermill</u>, 470 U.S. 532, 542, 105 S.Ct. 1487, 84 L.Ed.2d 494 (1985) A key element of procedural due process includes notice and a meaningful opportunity to be heard.; and

Morrison v. Dep't of Labor & Industr., 168 Wn. App. 269, 273,. 277 P.3d 675 (2012) (quoting <u>Downey v. Pierce</u> <u>County</u>, 165 Wn.App. 152, 165, 267 P.3d 445 (2011)) "A meaningful opportunity to be heard means 'at a meaningful time and in a meaningful manner.""

The Court should accept review to correct the Constitutional violations and conflict created by the Opinion and reverse the Court of Appeals' instructing it to remedy the violations.

Petion for Discretionary Review - Page 12 of 19

B. Whether the Court of Appeals Opinion is in conflict with the decisions of this Court pursuant to RAP 13.4(b)(1),(2),(3)&(4) governing a trial Court's authority to alter a Negotiated Settlement Agreement.

The Opinion of the Court of Appeals conflicts with decisions of both the Washington Supreme Court and the Washington Court of Appeals. A trial court cannot rewrite an NSA.

The Opinion conflicts with years of case law holding a trial court has no authority to alter the terms of a negotiated settlement agreement. <u>Chaffee v. Chaffee</u>, 19 Wn.2d 607, 625, 145 P.2d 244, 252 (1943) and <u>Panorama Vill. Condo. Owners</u> <u>Ass'n Bd. of Directors v. Allstate</u>, 144 Wn.2d 130, 137, 26 P.3d 910, 914 (2001).

It conflicts with the longstanding tenet of law that the trial court has no authority to rewrite a negotiated settlement agreement. Also, in this case, the terms the trial court used turned it into one-sided agreement further harming Petitioners. Hannas were not to receive payment for their heating system

Petion for Discretionary Review - Page 13 of 19

until Margitans trench for their waterline was dug. Alterations made by the trial court are in direct conflict with <u>Tadych v.</u> <u>Noble Ridge Construction, Inc., et al.</u>, No. 100049-9 (Wash. Oct. 27, 2022).

The opinion of the Court of Appeals ignores established law and the duty of the court. "It is the duty of the court to declare the meaning of what is written, and not what was intended to be written." <u>J.W. Seavey Hop Corp. v. Pollock</u>, 20 Wn.2d 337, 349, 147 P.2d 310 (1944).

The opinion is also in direct conflict with <u>Howard v.</u> <u>Dimaggio</u>, 70 Wn.App. 734, 739, 855 P.2d 335 (1993), where the trial court improperly enforced an agreement where holding harmless and release documents were not agreed upon.

a) The trial Court failed to adhere to the Standard of Proof required to enforce the altered NSA.

The opinion of the Court of Appeals conflicts with this Court's prior decisions. In *Brinkerhoff v. Campbell*, 99 Wn. App. 692, 696-97, 994 P.2d 911 (2000) "The party moving to

Petion for Discretionary Review - Page 14 of 19

enforce a settlement agreement carries the burden of proving that there is no genuine dispute over the existence and material terms of the agreement." As in a summary judgment motion, the parties' submissions must be read in the light most favorable to the nonmoving party in order to determine whether reasonable minds could reach only one conclusion. *Brinkerhoff* 99 Wn.App. at 697, 994 P.2d 911. The rewritten, ordered NSA added new terms to which Margitans objected. No evidentiary hearing was held. Facts were in dispute. The trial court added terms and deleted terms from the April 2022 NSA. The trial court's failure to hear facts in dispute in an evidentiary hearing is grounds for this Court to grant review.

b) The trial Court added the words "forever and acts"

The opinion of the Court of Appeals conflicts with this Court's prior decisions. The April 27, 2022 NSA required further language in order for it to be complete. It was nothing more than an agreement to agree.

Petion for Discretionary Review - Page 15 of 19

The Opinion is in conflict with published opinions such as <u>Keystone Land & Dev. Co. v. Xerox Corp.</u>, 152 Wn.2d 171, 180, 94 P.3d 945 (2004), *cert. denied*, 544 U.S. 905 (2005) and <u>Sandeman v. Sayres</u>, 50 Wn.2d 539, 314 P.2d 428 (1957).

The opinion also conflicts with CR 2A requirements as stated in *Evans Son, Inc. v. City of Yakima*, <u>136 Wn. App. 471</u>, <u>475</u>, <u>149 P.3d 691</u> (2006) quoting <u>Morris v. Maks</u>, 69 Wn. App. 865, 869, 850 P.2d 1357 (1993)) "[w]e must be able to conclude that the parities agreed to the subject matter; all of the provisions of the agreement were set out in the writings; and 'the parties intended a binding agreement prior to the time of the signing and delivery of a formal contract.'"

The April 27, 2022, agreed upon and signed NSA did not include the language that the specific **"acts"** would be released **"forever"** as rewritten by the trial Judge.

Petion for Discretionary Review - Page 16 of 19

The opinion of the Court of Appeals is in direct conflict with countless opinions that a trial court has no authority to rewrite an NSA.

C. Whether the Opinion is in conflict with the decisions of this Court pursuant to RAP 13.4(b)(1),(2) governing a trial Court's authority over nonparties.

The opinion of the Court of Appeals conflicts with CR 3.

The Court of Appeals opinion:

"The trial court may not have had jurisdiction over the Hannas' adult children or insurer, who were nonparties. But that is of no import because the trial court did not require those nonparties to do anything; rather, it required the Margitans to release their claims against those nonparties. And there is no serious dispute here that the superior court had jurisdiction over the Margitans."

(Court of Appeals' May 30, 2024, Unpublished Opinion page 18 footnote #9)

The April 27, 2022 agreed upon NSA did not release Pemco

and Hannas' adult children. Pemco is Hannas' insurance

company which defended Hannas under the reservation of

rights. Both Pemco and Hannas' children were never served or

Petion for Discretionary Review - Page 17 of 19

made parties to the litigation. The trial Court enforcing nonparties to be released turns CR 3 on its head.

The trial court deprived Margitans of their rights to bring claims in the future against Hannas' adult children for their ongoing actions when and if they become ripe.

The opinion of the Court of Appeals is the first of its kind allowing a trial Court the authority to require a litigant to release nonparties.

It is in great substantial public interest to have this Court determine if a trial court can Order a litigant release a nonparty.

VI. Conclusion

Equal access to the Court is a fundamental right of the public to obtain justice. It is of great importance for this Court to issue a decision holding the trial Court cannot deprive a party of the use of certain or any Court Rules and deny a litigant's Motion to be heard.

Petion for Discretionary Review - Page 18 of 19

The Margitans respectfully request that this Court grant

review.

I certify that this Petition contains 2,802 words (word processing software) and is in compliance with RAP 18.17

Allan Margitan, Pro Se

Allan Margitan, Pro Se Dated August 1, 2024 PO Box 328 Nine Mile Falls WA 99026 Phone 509-990-6169

Petion for Discretionary Review - Page 19 of 19

APPENDIX "A"

.

Tristen L. Worthen Clerk/Administrator

(509) 456-3082 TDD #1-800-833-6388

The Court of Appeals of the State of Washington Division III



May 30, 2024

E-mail John Charles Riseborough Paine Hamblen 717 W Sprague Ave Ste 1200 Spokane, WA 99201-3905 JCR@painehamblen.com

E-mail Paul Sykes Stewart Paine Hamblen 717 W Sprague Ave Ste 1200 Spokane, WA 99201-3505 paul.stewart@painehamblen.com

E-mai8l Allan Margitan Gina Margitan P.O. Box 328 14410 W. Charles Rd Nine Mile Falls, WA 99026 marginel@aol.com

> CASE # 390772 Mark Hanna, et al v. Allan Margitan, et al SPOKANE COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT No. 1920412432

Counsel, Mr. Margitan, and Ms. Margitan:

Enclosed please find a copy of the opinion filed by the court today. A party need not file a motion for reconsideration as a prerequisite to discretionary review by the Supreme Court. RAP 13.3(b); 13.4(a). If a motion for reconsideration is filed, it should state with particularity the points of law or fact which the moving party contends the court has overlooked or misapprehended, together with a brief argument on the points raised. RAP 12.4(c). Motions for reconsideration which merely reargue the case should not be filed.

Motions for reconsideration, if any, must be filed within twenty (20) days after the filing of the opinion. Please file the motion electronically through the court's e-filing portal or, if in paper format, only the original motion need be filed. If no motion for reconsideration is filed, any petition for review to the Supreme Court must be filed in this court within thirty (30) days after the filing of this opinion. The motion for reconsideration and petition for review must be <u>received</u> (not mailed) on or before the dates they are due. RAP 18.5(c).

Sincerely,

Tristen Worthen Clerk/Administrator