FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
9/19/2024 4:04 PM
BY ERIN L. LENNON
CLERK

Washington Supreme Court No. 1033265

Washington State Court of Appeals, Div. III No. 390772

## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

ALLAN and GINA MARGITAN,

Petitioners,

v.

MARK and JENNIFER HANNA,

Respondents.

### ANSWER T● PETITION FOR REVIEW

Paul S. Stewart, WSBA #45469 John C. Riseborough, WSBA #7740 PAINE HAMBLEN, P.S. 717 W. Sprague Avenue, Suite 1200 Spokane, Washington 99201-3505 (509) 455-6000

Attorneys for Respondents Hanna

##

### I. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENTS

Defendants-Respondents Mark and Jennifer Hanna file this Answer to Margitan's Petition for Review.

### II. COURT OF APPEALS' DECISION

Margitan seeks review of *Margitan v. Hanna*, No. 39077-2-III, 2024 WL 2768005 (Slip. Op. May 30, 2024), an unpublished opinion out of the Court of Appeals, Division III. After the Court of Appeals issued its opinion, Margitan filed a Motion for Reconsideration and requested that the Court of Appeals publish its opinion. On July 9, 2024, Court of Appeals denied Margitan's motion.

### III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

After years of contentious litigation, and on the eve of trial, the Hannas and the Margitans, who are neighbors, entered into a settlement agreement. The settlement agreement compensated the Margitans in exchange for the release and dismissal of their claims against the Hannas. The agreement

also included terms designed to help the parties avoid future disputes. The settlement agreement was thoughtful, detailed, and the result of hours of negotiations. The agreement was signed by the Hannas, Margitans, and their respective counsel. Following the execution of the settlement agreement, the parties appeared before the Spokane County Superior Court, Judge Maryann Moreno, and made a record of the settlement terms.

Later, Margitan sought to inject new terms into the agreement. He also refused to sign the release drafted by the Hannas' counsel. Counsel attempted to find workable compromises. When the Hannas would not give in to Margitan's unreasonable demands, Margitan attempted to rescind the agreement. The Hannas moved (on shortened time) to enforce the settlement agreement, which Judge Moreno granted.

Margitan appealed, arguing that the Superior Court erred in enforcing the settlement agreement. The Court of Appeals, Division III disagreed with Margitan and affirmed the Superior

Court's Order enforcing the settlement agreement. The Court of Appeals concluded that there was not a genuine dispute concerning the terms of the agreement despite Margitan's attempts to "concoct" a dispute. The Court of Appeals also rejected Margitan's argument that the Superior Court erred in hearing the Hannas' motion to enforce on shortened time, concluding that the Superior Court was "well within its discretion" in hearing the motion on an expedited basis.

For a more detailed recitation of the facts and analysis of Margitan's arguments on appeal, please see the Court of Appeals' May 30, 2024 Opinion (attached to Margitan's Petition for Review).

### IV. ARGUMENT

A petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only:

(1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or

- (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a published decision of the Court of Appeals; or
- (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or
- (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

### RAP 13.4(b) (formatting altered for clarity).

Margitan's Petition for Review fails to meet any criteria justifying review under RAP 13.4(b).

# A. The Court of Appeals' Opinion is not in conflict with decisions of the Supreme Court.

Margitan first argues that the Court of Appeals' Opinion "conflicts with US and Washington State cases which prohibit trial courts from failing to hear a litigant's motion." Pet. at 10-12 (citations omitted). Margitan does not specify what motion the court "fail[ed] to hear," but presumably it was his motion for reconsideration regarding the Superior Court's Order enforcing the settlement agreement. *See* Slip Op. at 14. It is true

that, following Judge Maryann Moreno's retirement, a new Superior Court judge was assigned to the case, and the new judge declined to rule on Margitan's motion for reconsideration.

Margitan fails to establish a due process right to have a trial court consider a motion for reconsideration. Regardless, the issue was mooted by Margitan's appeal. Margitan appealed the order that he asked the Superior Court to reconsider thus obviating the need for a decision on reconsideration.

Margitan also argues that the Court of Appeals' Opinion "conflicts with . . . case law holding a trial court has no authority to alter [or rewrite] the terms of a negotiated settlement agreement." Pet. at 13 (citing *Chaffee v. Chaffee*, 19 Wn.2d 607, 625, 145 P.2d 244, 252 (1943) and *Panorama Vill. Condo. Owners Ass'n Bd. of Directors v. Allstate*, 144 Wn.2d 130, 137, 26 P.3d 910, 914 (2001)). Margitan mischaracterizes the Superior Court's Order enforcing the Hanna-Margitan settlement agreement. The Superior Court did not alter or

rewrite the parties' settlement agreement in this case; it merely ruled that the settlement agreement was enforceable.

Margitan fails to establish that Court of Appeals'

Opinion conflicts with decisions of the Supreme Court.<sup>1</sup>

## B. The Court of Appeals' Opinion is not in conflict with a published decision of the Court of Appeals.

Margitan cites, in passing, to a few published Court of Appeals' decisions for the proposition that he had a "right to be heard." *See* Pet. at 11-12. This argument was addressed in Section A, *supra*. As described in the Court of Appeals' Opinion, Margitan had full opportunity to "be heard."

Margitan also argues that the Court of Appeals' Opinion conflicts with *Brinkerhoff v. Campbell*, 99 Wn. App. 692, 994 P.2d 911 (2000) on the grounds that *Brinkerhoff* requires the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Margitan also argues that the Court of Appeals' Opinion "conflicts with CR 3." Pet. at 17-18. An alleged conflict with a court rule is not grounds for review under RAP 13.4(b). In arguing that the Superior Court erred in exercising "authority over nonparties," Margitan fails to cite any case law or other legal authority to support his argument.

party seeking to enforce a settlement agreement to establish that there is no genuine dispute over the existence and material terms of the agreement. Pet. at 14-15. The Court of Appeals' Opinion cites *Brinkerhoff* for this same proposition, Slip. Op. at 15, and the Opinion goes on to apply the same rule. The Court of Appeals correctly concluded that the Hannas carried their burden to establish the existence and material terms of the settlement agreement (despite Margitan's attempt to "concoct a factual dispute," Slip Op. at 16).

Finally, Margitan argues that the Court of Appeals' Opinion conflicts with *Evans Son, Inc. v. City of Yakima*, 136 Wn. App. 471, 149 P.3d 691 (2006). Margitan cites *Evans Son, Inc.* for the proposition that CR 2A requires the agreement of the parties set out in "writings." Pet. at 16. Margitan appears to argue that Court of Appeals' Opinion conflicts with *Evans Son, Inc.* because the Superior Court allegedly added the words "acts" and "forever" into the parties' settlement agreement. Pet. at 16. Again, there is no conflict between the Court of Appeals'

Opinion and other decisions of the Court of Appeals. The Court of Appeals specifically addressed Margitan's argument, noting that the argument was "not entirely clear," "ridiculous," and based on a "strained interpretation" of the settlement agreement. Slip Op. at 16-17.

In sum, Margitan fails to establish that any part of the Court of Appeals' Opinion conflicts conflict with other published decisions of the Court of Appeals.

# C. The Court of Appeals' Opinion does not involve a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States.

Margitan argues that the Court of Appeals' Opinion conflicts with the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments of the United States Constitution. Pet. at 9. Specifically, Margitan alleges that was denied "procedural and substantive" due process. *Id.* As addressed above, this argument is vague, but seemingly relates to (1) the newly assigned Superior Court judge not hearing Margitan's motion for reconsideration, and/or

(2) Judge Moreno hearing the Hannas' motion to enforce settlement agreement on shortened time. The first contention was mooted by Margitan's appeal, and the second contention is baseless: hearing motions on shortened time is within the discretion of the Court. *See generally* Slip Op. at 23-26.

The Court of Appeals' Opinion does not involve a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States.

# D. The Court of Appeals' Opinion does not involve an issue of substantial public interest.

Margitan argues that there is "great substantial public interest to have this Court determine if a trial court can [o]rder a litigant to release a nonparty." Pet. at 18. Margitan made this argument to the Court of Appeals, which found the argument without merit. See Slip Op. at 18. The plain language of the agreement required the Margitans to release their claims against the Hannas' adult children (based on allegations Margitan asserted in his 2021 lawsuit) and Margitan's counsel stated in

open court that the Hannas' insurer PEMCO would be released.

Id.

There is no public interest implicated in this case. This is a dispute between two neighbors<sup>2</sup>, and, despite espousing some benefit to Washington jurisprudence, Margitan really seeks to vindicate what he considers his personal rights. Margitan's argument is frivolous and does not involve an issue of substantial public importance.

///

///

///

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>As Margitan notes, the parties have engaged in "years of litigation." Pet. at 2. Margitan's litigation has resulted in several Court of Appeals' decisions, all of which deny him his requested relief. *Margitan v. Spokane Reg'l Health Dist.*, No. 32907-1-III, 2016 Wash. App. LEXIS 92, at \*1 (Ct. App. Jan. 21, 2016); *Margitan v. Spokane Reg'l Health Dist.*, No. 34606-4-III, 2018 Wash. App. LEXIS 1711, at \*1 (Ct. App. July 24, 2018); *Margitan v. Spokane Reg'l Health Dist.*, No. 34746-0-III, 2018 Wash. App. LEXIS 1712, at \*1 (Ct. App. July 24, 2018), *rev. denied, Margitan v. Hanna*, 2019 Wash. LEXIS 92 (Wash., Feb. 6, 2019).

### VI. CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the Hannas respectfully request that Margitan's Petition for Review be denied.